Agenda for the Regular Meeting of the Marinwood CSD Board of Directors

Tuesday — September 11, 2018— 7:30 PM
Marinwood Community Center, 775 Miller Creek Road, San Rafael, CA 94903

*Open Session shall begin no earlier than 7:30PM._Times listed are approximate, subject to the course of the meeting.

Time* Description: Board Action
A. 7:30 PM |CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
MOMENT OF SILENCE IN REMEMBERENCE OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2001
B. 7:31 PM |JAGENDA Adopt
C. 7:35 PM [CONSENT CALENDAR
a. Draft Minutes of Regular Meeting of August 14, 2018 Approve
b. Bills Paid Nos. 2564 — 2691
D. 7:40 PM |PUBLIC COMMENT OPEN TIME FOR ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA
Speakers are asked to limit commenits to three minutes. Speakers may comment only on non-agenda items
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District. The Board may not take action on, consider or debate
items not on the agenda except under narrow circumstances meeting statutory tests. Response to
comments on non-agenda items will be limited to factual information or clarifying questions from staff or
Board. The President may refer the matter to staff or to a future meeting agenda.
E. 7:50 PM |DISTRICT MATTERS
1. Actuarial Report: Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Valuation as of July 1, Review
2017 (presented by Nicolay Consulting)
2. Update on Pension Liability Analysis with August 2018 Release of CalPERS Review
Annual Valuation Reports as of June 30, 2017
3. Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Year-End Profit & Loss Financial Statements (Pre-audit) Review
4. District Manager Report Review
F. 8:40PM |FIRE DEPARTMENT MATTERS
1. Draft Minutes of Fire Commission Meeting of September 4, 2018 Review
P. Proposed Agreement for Fire Chief Officer Services as Provided by City of San Approve
Rafael
8. Parking Considerations for Fire Station Driveway Discuss
4. Fire Activity Summary and Chief Report Review
5. Date of Next Fire Commission Meeting — October 2, 2018
G. 9:20 PM |PARK AND RECREATION MATTERS
1. Draft Minutes of Park & Recreation Commission Meeting of August 28, 2018 Review
2. Proposed Facility Design and Site Plan for Park Maintenance Facility Replacement Approve
Project
3. Recreation and Park Maintenance Activity Reports Review
4. Date of Next Park & Recreation Commission Meeting — October 23, 2018
H. 9:50PM \NEw AND OTHER BUSINESS
1. Requests for Future Meeting Agenda Items
l. 9:55 PM |RECOGNITIONS and BOARD MEMBER ITEMS OF INTEREST
J. 10:00 PM[ADJOURN

DATE OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING - September 11, 2018

Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations, aids or services may be made to the
district office no later than 72 hours prior to the meeting by contacting (415) 479-0775




Marinwood Community Services District

Draft Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting
Tuesday August 14,2018

Time and Place: 7:30PM Marinwood Community Center classroom.

Present:

Board Members: Jeff Naylor, Irv Schwartz, Izabela Perry and Bill Shea.

Absent: Leah Green.

Staff: District Manager Eric Dreikosen, Recreation Director Luke Fretwell, Fire Chief Tom Roach, Firefighter
Brandon Selvitella and Administrative Assistant Carolyn Sullivan.

Park and Recreation Commissioners: Sivan Oyserman and Jon Parkinson.

Others Present: Bill McNicolas, Linda Barnello, Donna McLeran, Stephen Nestel, Gabriela Shea and Eric Bingham.

Call to Order
Open Session Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

Agenda
Schwartz stated he would like to provide an update on the two encroachment issues. Dreikosen replied that could be
handled under Item I.
M/s Naylor/Shea to approve agenda as presented. Ayes: Perry, Naylor, Shea and Schwartz. Nays: None.
Absent: Green. Motion carried.

Consent Calendar
a. Draft minutes of Regular meeting of July 17, 2018: Schwartz commented the minutes should state ...under a
categorical exemption” not “...in the exemption category”. Naylor commented with regards to the second
encroachment issue the motion “failed” not “carried”.
b. Draft minutes of Public Hearing Special Meeting of July 26, 2018: Oyserman commented she was present at the
meeting, but was not listed as in attendance.
c. Bills paid Nos. 2401-2563: Shea inquired about the overtime costs. Roach replied there was a firefighter out on strike
team. Naylor commented that the unfunded liability has been paid for fiscal year 2018-19 saving the District about
$11,000. Barnello questioned if parents pay for camp field trips. Perry replied field trip costs are covered by camp fees.
Barnello questioned if the MIP money goes to Luke and then Luke pays the bands. Fretwell replied that is correct.
Fretwell added the stage crew bills the District.
M/s Shea/Schwartz to approve Consent Calendar as amended. Ayes: Perry, Naylor, Shea and Schwartz. Nays:
None. Absent: Green. Motion carried.

Public Comment Open Time for Items Not on Agenda

Barnello commented the Parks staff does a good job and manage well even with a dilapidated maintenance facility, but
they are not at the facility very often, they are in the field. Barnello commented she wanted to offer thanks to the staff
for taking pride in their work. Nestel stated the District is embarking on an important process and most people want to
replace the shed. Nestel added that people shouldn’t resort to attacks on each other and asked for civility.

District Matters

Resolution 2018-08: Adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigated Monitoring Program for the
Marinwood Park Maintenance Facility Replacement Project: Dreikosen stated he had included a detailed memo and
documents in the Board packet that included all received written comments. Dreikosen added of note Title 14 CCR
15073.5(c) (4) allows the Board to “add new information to the Negative Declaration which merely clarifies, amplifies,
or makes insignificant changes to the Negative Declaration”.

A community member asked if no real plan is in place is it legal to move forward. Perry replied, yes, the District is
following the proper procedures and law. Nestel commented in response to all the documents the concerns are not
being addressed; the footprint of the building needs to be smaller. Nestel added that the District has had a lot of work
done on its buildings since 2005 and has done so without pulling permits. Nestel commented the land surveyors were
not licensed biologists. Nestel commented that the District Manager has not been forthcoming about the project. Nestel
stated water runoff from the roof is still an issue and he maintains that the park vehicles need to turn around in the
meadow. Nestel added the mapping sources were outdated and the response from the cultural study was misconstrued
and his work should be discredited. Nestel continued commenting that the new shed should be smaller and not to
interfere with the creek bed; the current proposal is large and will take up millions of dollars of acreage.

Barnello commented she appreciated the Board listening to the public’s concerns. Barnello stated she had difficulty
deciphering the square footage of the proposed building especially the width the building. Barnello urged the Board



members to visit the site and imagine the building. The proposed building blocks the view of the panhandle and its
sightlines and is a safety concern. The area might not be large enough for the proposed building with its driveway. The
trucks will have to drive through the swampy area which is still unknown as to why the area is wet. Additionally if the
trees need to be cut it will decrease property values.
Donna Mcleran asked if there would be enough room for fire vehicles access. Roach replied yes. Bingham stated he
believes people are supportive of the project, but the issue is the size of the building. It would be good to understand
the needs of the District versus the wants. Perry replied a needs assessment was completed in the very early stages of
the project. Naylor commented the Board and the District has followed the rules, the process has been transparent and
he is convinced it is time to move forward. This process began two years ago and staff has been working with unsafe
conditions. Naylor reiterated that the Board will always listen to public comment. Perry stated as a former Park and
Recreation Commissioner she knows firsthand how long this process has been and the District needs to treat the
employees with the respect they deserve. This proposal combines the two buildings into one building while hiding
away the equipment and materials from view. Perry stated she values the opinions of professionals in their field and
she vales the experience of the architect. She thanked Dreikosen for his work helping this project move forward.

M/s Naylor/ Shea to approve Resolution 2018-08 Adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigated

Monitoring Program for the Marinwood Park Maintenance Facility Replacement Project. Ayes: Perry, Naylor

and Shea. Nays: None. Abstain: Schwartz. Absent: Green. Motion carried.
2. Presentation of Current Proposed Facility Design and Site Plan for Park Maintenance Facility Replacement
Project: Bill Hansell of Hansell Design presented the proposed building. Hansell commented he has thirty years’
experience in Commercial and Residential designs. Hansell stated he understands the importance of the process, he had
reviewed all documents prior to beginning the design as well as spoke to staff. Hansell presented the proposed building
and presented a 3-D rendering. Hansell commented he had lowered the roof by one foot to help reduce the building
from sight of the neighbors. Hansell commented sound is similar to light in that a direct line of sight and or sound will
travel in the direction it is clearest. A sound wall may be considered to buffer any noise and the density of that wall is
important. Hansell commented that the square footage of the current facility are about 4,500 while the proposed
building will be about 4,460. A community member asked what the substrate would be for open courtyard. Hansell
replied yet to be determined, but a pervious material such as gravel would be recommended. Jon Parkinson thanked the
Board for moving the project forward and the new design is a major aesthetic improvement from the current situation.
Hansell replied the lifespan of the building was considered when producing the proposal as well as location. Oyserman
thanked Hansell for the CAD drawings and thanked him for listening to community concerns. Barnello asked how sand
materials would be placed on gravel. Hansell replied block pavers may be used for storing sand. Barnello asked if the
roll up doors would be manual or electric. Hansell replied the building will have electricity. Barnello asked the width
of the building. Hansell replied 36 feet. Shea commented he appreciated Hansell’s experience and knowledge
especially considering the acoustics of the area. Bingham commented that the trees in the area are deciduous rendering
the building more visible in the winter. Hansell replied the building will not be as visible as assumed, the roof line was
lowered by a foot and the gradual slope of roof is a necessity due to water runoff. Hansell also recommended not
trimming any of the younger trees in the area, the pine trees are the issue and suggested having an arborist study the
trees. A community member asked about lighting in the area. Hansell replied there will be no more lights than the
current building. Nestel stated there is a point of contention on the dimension of the building and vehicle storage will
be difficult. Additionally the crew works outside and does not need a large indoor space. Fretwell replied the crew
works outside on projects because they currently do not have a safe place indoors. Nestel stated ventilation will be an
issue. Hansell replied the building is open air with cross ventilation and will meet all code standards. Mcleran thanked
Hansell for the 3-D rendering and appreciated the presentation.
3. Update: Marinwood CSD Emergency Services Succession (ESS) Committee: Meeting Minutes of June 11, 2018:
Dreikosen stated this is informational only. Schwartz commented there has been no feedback from San Rafael as of
June 11%, but there is new information and urged the Committee to meet. Dreikosen replied the information has not
been finalized.
4. District Manager Report: Dreikosen commented all information has been provided in the packet, but did want to
mention that Paula Collins is retiring after 29 years with the District and Sullivan expressed her interest in the position.

Fire Department Matters

L. Draft Minutes of Fire Commission Meeting on August 7, 2018: Schwartz inquired about the Measure A tax. Roach
replied the Commission will be discussing that in September. Naylor commented he believes that the use of Measure A
funds for the Department are restricted to Park areas only. Roach replied yes, most likely.

2. Fire Activity Summary and Chief Report: Roach commented it’s wildland season and he is fielding many calls.
Schwartz asked if the kitchen was complete. Roach replied almost.

3. Review of Current Shared Services Agreement with San Rafael: Dreikosen commented this agenda item was
requested by Schwartz. The document was written by Roach and Dreikosen and Dreikosen stated it needs to be looked
at from the other vantage point as well. Schwartz commented he would like to postpone further discussion until the
September meeting for the Fire Commission to have the chance to weigh in. Nestel commented this document is
helpful and the value that Marinwood provides San Rafael is enormous.



Park and Recreation Matters

1. Recreation and Park Maintenance Activity Reports: Fretwell commented the summer community events have been
going really well. The last Music in the Park will be held Friday August 24", The summer camp staff and pool staff
have done a great job keeping things safe and fun. Perry thanked Fretwell for the summer programs. Fretwell
commented in regards to Park maintenance the staff has been focusing on irrigation issue repairs and upcoming looks
to do a community center clean-up before fall programming begins. Nestel commented the District holds too many
alcoholic events.

New and Other Business

1. Requests for Future Meeting Agenda Items:
e  Schwartz: Shared Services.
e Perry: Recognition to Collins for 29 years of service to the District.
e Naylor: CalPERS report and trend analysis.

Recognitions and Board Member Items of Interest

Schwartz commented the residents at Verbena Court complied with the District’s request to remove materials from
District property. Schwartz also noted the residents on Las Gallinas removed their property from District land within
the time frame given.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:06PM.
The date of the next Regular Board Meeting was set for September 11, 2018.

Respectfully submitted,
Carolyn Sullivan



MARINWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT Treasury Fund 8067 Classes:
REQUEST FOR PAYMENT OF CLAIMS Street lights
Fire
Approved by the Board of Directors on September 11, 2018 Recreaction
Park
TOTAL
NO. DATE VENDOR CLAIM PURPOSE Class GL Account Job AMOUNT

2564 8/1/18 Voided - 0.00
2565 8/1/18 Jacksons Hardware 343.30 Clothing Park 5220825 General 343.30
2566 8/1/18 Costello, Christine 969.74 Zumba Classes Rec 5210146 Adult 969.74
2567 8/1/18 Mehciz, Geraid 2,576.40 Tennis Classes Rec 5210146 Tennis 2,576.40
2568 8/1/18 Timothy Bowen 2,040.00 Summer Speciality Camp Rec 5210146 Summer 2,040.00
2569 8/1/18 Recreation Reimagined 8,058.75 Summer Speciality Camp Rec 5210146 Summer 8,058.75
2570 8/1/18 Marinwood CSD 203,708.89 Fire Reg Salary Fire 5110110 General 29,400.96
Overtime Fire 5120110 General 7,367.40
FLSA Fire 5110319 General 1,203.89
Shift Diff. Fire 5110310 General 463.92
Admin Asst Fire 5110110 Admin 807.68
Admin Mngr Fire 5110110 Admin 1,940.00
Admin Asst Rec 5110110 Admin 807.68
Admin Asst Park 5110110 Admin 403.84
Admin Mngr Rec 5110110 Admin 970.00
Admin Mngr Park 5110110 Admin 970
Rec Director Rec 5110110 General 2,221.652
Rec Director Park 5110110 General 952.08
Rec Salary Rec 5110110 General 6,904.00
Park Salary Park 5110110 General 6,389.60
Bldg Attendant Rec 5110210 Building 385.00
Pool Staff Rec 5110210 Pool 22,146.94
Aquatics/Lessons Rec 5110210 Aquatics 13,118.59
Summer Prog Rec 5110210 Summer 94,706.76
Preschool Rec 5110210 Preschool 363.00
Tennis Rec 5110210 Tennis 450.00
Comm Rec Rec 5110210 Community 863.50
Payroll billing Fire 5210230 General 110.16
Payroll billing Rec 5210230 General 440.03
Payroll billing Park 6210230 General 16.51
SS Fire 5140140 General 2,918.24
SS Rec 5140140 General 11,322.80
SS Park 5140140 General 484.30
Unemployment Rec 5140145 General 2,730.36
Benefits witholding Fire 2120066 General -5,088.52
Benefits witholding Rec 2120066 General -1,040.15
Benefits witholding Park 2120066 General -1,021.20
2571 8/1/18 Jason Kobrin 609.00 Refund Camps Rec 5220819 Summer 609.00
2572 8/1/18 State of Ca Indust. Relation 146.25 Slide Inspection Rec 5211610 Pool 146.25
2573  8/10/18 Besharati, Halleh 1,960.00 Summer Speciality Camp Rec 5210146 Summer 1,960.00
2574  8/10/18 Susan Cohen 350.00 Refund Camps Rec 5210146 Summer 350.00
2575  8/10/18 Marinwood CSD 11,548.50 Retirement 8/3/18 Park 5130510 General 1,297.56
Rec 5130510 General 1,627.62
Fire 5130510 General 8,623.32
2576  8/10/18 US Bank 18,195.14 MERA Principal Fire 5211710 General 14,561.21
MERA Interest Fire 5211715 General 1,814.42
MERA Principal Park 5211710 General 1,617.91
MERA Interest Park 5211715 General 201.60
2577  8/10/18 Mehciz, Gerald 1,806.40 Tennis Classes Rec 5210146 Tennis 1,806.40
2578  8/10/18 Recreation Reimagined 3,087.50 Summer Speciality Camp Rec 5210146 Summer 3,087.50
2579  8/10/18 Bruton, Robyn 480.64 Summer Camp Supplies Rec 5220819 Summer 480.64
2580  8/10/18 Dairy Delivery 395.37 Vending Rec 5220826 Pool 395.37
2581  8/10/18 Scandia Family Fun 3,410.00 Field Trip 8/15 Rec 5220819 Summer 3,410.00
2582  8/10/18 Dixie School District 18,767.50 School rentals Rec 5220819 Summer 18,767.50
2583  8/14/18 Timothy Best 2,985.20 Queenstone (FEMA) Fire 5220310 General 2,985.20
2584  8/14/18 Marin Resource Recovery 66.50 Dump Fees Park 5210815 General 66.50
2585  8/14/18 Lacey Merryman 444.57 Staff Training Rec 5211315 Pool 114.64
Comm Rec Rec 5220819 Community 65.29
GIT Rec 5220819 Aquatics 264.64
2586  8/14/18 Marin Landscape Materials 267.15 Soil/Grounds Maint Park 5220310 General 257.15
2587  8/14/18 Co of Marin Tax Collect - Voided 0.00
2588  8/14/18 Staples Credit Plan 688.69 Office Supplies Fire 5220110 General 158.02
Rec 5220110 General 530.67
2589  8/14/18 Jacksons Hardware 343.30 Grounds Maint Park 5220310 General 343.30
2590  8/14/18 AFLAC 191.10 Disability Ins. Park 5130120 General 191.10
2591  8/14/18 DKG Dave Garoutte 300.00 MIP Stage crew Rec 5220819 Community 300.00



TOTAL

NO. DATE VENDOR CLAIM PURPOSE Class GL Account Job AMOUNT
2592  8/14/18 Dairy Delivery 792.39 Vending Rec 5220826 Pool 792.39
2593  8/14/18 Steve Wilbur 258.00 Camp Refund Rec 4631920 Summer 258.00
2594  B8/14/18 Laurie Lauster 57.00 Refund Swim Lessons Rec 4631917 Aquatics 57.00
2595  8/14/18 Karri O'Bryan 535.00 Refunds Camps Rec 4631920 Summer §35.00
2596  8/14/18 Suzanne Egan 325.00 Refund CIT Rec 4631920 Summer 325.00
2597  8/14/18 Ben Lindenmuth 207.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 207.00
2598  8/14/18 Sofia Sason 73.00 Tennis Refund Rec 4631915 Tennis 73.00
2599  8/14/18 Ben Ludin 92.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 92.00
2600  8/14/18 Nicole Bussi 301.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 301.00
2601 8/14/18 lan Fein 392.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 392.00
2602  8/14/18 Ruby Rippey 150.00 Refund Preschool Rec 4631922 Preschool 150.00
2603  8/14/18 Sean Day 437.78 Clothing Fire 5220210 General 437.78
2604  8/14/18 Smith, Brian 413.17 Wildland Gear Fire 5220210 General 413.17
2605  8/15/18 Marinwood CSD 204,627.02 Fire Reg Salary Fire 5110110 General 29,262.08

Fire Temp Hire Fire 5110210 General 2,557.94

Fire Overtime Fire 5120110 General 16,468.68

Shift Diff. Fire 5110310 General 387.36

Admin Asst Fire 5110110 Admin 807.68

Admin Mngr Fire 5110110 Admin 1,940.00

Admin Asst Rec 5110110 Admin 807.68

Admin Asst Park 5110110 Admin 403.84

Admin Mngr Rec 5110110 Admin 970.00

Admin Mngr Park 5110110 Admin 970.00

Rec Director Rec 5110110 General 2,221.52

Rec Director Park 5110110 General 952.08

Rec Salary Rec 5110110 General 6,904.00

Park Salary Park 5110110 General 6,389.60

Bldg Attendant Rec 5110210 Building 781.00

Pool Staff Rec 5110210 Pool 21,834.41

Aquatics/Lessons Rec 5110210 Aquatics 12,096.16

Summer Prog Rec 5110210 Summer 87,422.88

Preschool Rec 5110210 Preschool 321.00

Tennis Rec 5110210 Tennis 450.00

Payroll billing Fire 5210230 General 139.27

Payroll billing Rec 5210230 General 405.92

Payroll billing Park 5210230 General 16.26

S8 Fire 5140140 General 3,701.58

SS Rec 5140140 General 10,624.50

§S Park 5140140 General 484.30

Unemployment Rec 5140145 General 2,457.15

Benefits witholding Fire 2120066 General -5,088.52

Benefits witholding Rec 2120066 General -1,040.15

Benefits witholding Park 2120066 General -1,021.20

2606  8/15/18 Peter Ockner 156.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 156.00
2607  8/15/18 Meredith Tripp 44.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 44.00
2608  8/15/18 Bruton, Robyn 305.54 Summer Camp Supplies Rec 5220819 Summer 305.54
2609  8/16/18 Elisabeth Rudder 81.75 Travel mileage Rec 5211440 General 81.75
2610  8/16/18 Co of Marin Tax Collect 1,160.77 Gas Park 5220610 General 1,160.77
2611  8/16/18 AT&T 86.00 [nternet Park 5210725 General 85.00
2612  8/16/18 Mehciz, Gerald 1,846.00 Tennis Prog Rec 5210146 Tennis 1,846.00
2613  8/16/18 Recreation Reimagined 4,252.50 Summer Speciality Camp Rec 5210146 Summer 4,252.50
2614  8/16/18 Marinwood CSD 43,747.26 Health Ins Sept Fire 5130120 General 26,339.22
Rec 5130120 General 6,524.86

Park 6130120 General 10,883.18

2615  8/16/18 PG&E 583.58 Electricity July Fire 5210810 General 9.53
Rec 6210810 General 399.69

Park 5210810 General 174.36

2616  8/16/18 AT&T 270.84 Phones July Fire 5210725 General 155.58
Rec 5210725 General 96.01

Park 5210725 General 19.25

2617  8/16/18 PG&E 1,427.51 Streetlights July Streetlights 5210825 General 1,427.51
2618  8/16/18 Comcast 127.06 Cable August Fire 5210725 General 127.06
2619  8/16/18 PG&E 358.24 Gas July Rec 5210810 General 227.84
Fire 5210810 General 130.40

2620  8/16/18 SolEd Solar 2,163.70 Solar July Rec 5210810 General 1,562.67
Fire 5210810 General 601.03

2621  8/16/18 Nicolay Consulting 7,900.00 GASB 75 OPEB Valuation Park 5210120 General 1,975.00
Rec 5210120 General 1,975.00

Fire 5210120 General 3,950.00

2622  8/16/18 Downing Heating & Air 589.00 Repairs Fire 5220310 General 228.50
Rec 5220310 Building 360.50

2623  8/16/18 Adam Melenkivitz 89.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 89.00



TOTAL

NO. DATE VENDOR CLAIM PURPOSE Class GL Account Job AMOUNT
2624  8/16/18 Karri O'Bryan 44.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 44.00
2625  8/16/18 Frieda Zesch 200.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 200.00
2626  8/16/18 Angela Bliss-Steiner 32.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 32.00
2627  8/16/18 Hagel Services 2,184.93 Janitorial Supplies Rec 5220827 General 2,184.93
2628  8/17/18 S&S Worldwide 604.87 Summer Camp Supplies Rec 5220819 Summer 604.87
2629  8/17/18 Greatamerica Financial 216.91 Copy Machine Park 5220130 General 21.69

Rec 5220130 General 130.15

Fire 5220130 General 65.07

2630  8/17/18 Leslie's Pool Supplies 1,065.67 Pool Chems Rec 5220710 Pool 1,065.67
2631  8/17/18 Alisa Rubel 230.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 230.00
2632  8/17/18 Marin Sanitary Service 2,555.09 Garbage July Park 5220610 General 1,788.56
Rec 5220610 General 511.02

Fire 5220610 General 2556.51

2633  8/17/18 Inland Business 1,073.91 Copy Machine Park 5220130 General 107.39
Rec 5220130 General 644.35

Fire 5220130 General 322.17

2634  8/17/18 Ewing Irrigation 582.75 lrrigation Maint Park 5220310 General 582.75
2635  8/17/18 Katerina Zhdanock 175.00 Refund Picnic Area Rec 4410215 Pool 175.00
2636  B8/17/18 Sonic.Net 19.95 Website Hosting Fire 5220110 General 9.97
Rec 5220110 General 9.98

2637  8/17/18 Lacey Merryman 122.50 GIT Supplies Rec 5220819 Aquatics 122.50
2638  8/17/18 Marin Resource Recovery 114.00 Dump Fees Park 5210815 General 114.00
2639  8/17/18 Landesign 2,985.00 Landscape Contractor Park 5211125 General 2,985.00
2640  8/17/18 Airgas USA 186.19 Pool Chems Rec 5220710 Pool 186.19
2641  B/17/18 CalPERS 16,666.00 OPEB Jul & Aug Park 5130130 General 5,666.00
Rec 5130130 General 834.00

Fire 5130130 General 10,166.00

2642  8/20/18 Marinwood CSD 11,332.96 Retirement 8/17/18 Park 5130510 General 1,297.56
Rec 5130510 General 1,627.62

Fire 5130510 General 8,407.78

2643  8/20/18 Honey Bucket 185.83 Porta Potty Park 5211220 General 185.83
2644  8/20/18 Peter Ockner 82.00 Refund Camps Rec 4631920 Summer 82.00
2645  8/20/18 Angela Owens 281.10 Travel mileage Rec 5211440 General 281.10
2646  8/20/18 Western Exterminator 260.00 Pest Control July Rec 5220310 Building 169.50
Fire 5220310 General 90.50

2647  B8/20/18 City of San Rafael 1,678.81 Vehicle Maint Fire 6210910 General 1,678.81
2648  8/20/18 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 1,225.00 Legal Fees Fire 5210131 General 1,225.00
2649  8/20/18 Postal Palace 36.68 Fed Ex Charges Fire 6220110 General 36.68
2650  8/20/18 Dairy Delivery 589.53 Vending Rec 5220826 Pool 589.53
2651  8/20/18 Verizon Wireless 42.00 Data E58 Fire 5210725 General 42.00
2652  8/20/18 Marin Co Sheriff Office 344.38 Mobile Data Fire 5210725 General 344.38
2653  8/20/18 Marin Co Haz Mat 1,700.00 JPA HazMat FY 18/19 Fire 5211330 General 1,700.00
2654  8/20/18 Old Town Glass 404.64 Window replacements Fire §220310 General 404.64
2655  8/20/18 Sprint 286.07 Cell phones Fire 5210725 General 286.07
2656  B8/20/18 American Messaging 21.64 Messaging Svcs Fire 5210925 General 21.64
2657  8/20/18 LN Curtis & Sons 548.58 Clothing Fire 5220825 General 548.58
2658  8/21/18 CalPERS 1,750.00 GASB 68 Report Park 5210120 General 233.00
Rec 5210120 General 385.00

Park 5210120 General 1,132.00

2659  8/21/18 Lincoln Aquatics 268.75 Filter Media Rec 5220710 Pool 268.75
2660  8/21/18 Comcast 136.13 Internet Fire 5210725 General 68.06
Rec 5210725 General 68.07

2661  8/21/18 DC Electric Group 266.32 Streetiights July Streetlights 5210825 General 266.32
2662  8/21/18 Co of Marin Tax Collect - Voided 0.00
2663  8/21/18 Bruton, Robyn 93.94 Summer Supplies Rec 5220819 Summer 93.94
2664  8/21/18 Airgas USA 186.19 Pool Chems Rec 5220710 Pool 186.19
2665  8/21/18 Lucas Fretwell 960.00 MIP Rec 5220819 Community 960.00
2666  8/21/18 Hyo Soap Sim 600.00 August Tae Kwon Do Rec 5210146 Youth 600.00
2667  8/22/18 Vision Svcs Plan 410.76 Vision Ins. Sept Fire 5130120 General 228.20
Park 5130120 General 86.73

Rec 5130120 General 95.83

2668  8/22/18 US Postmaster 2,000.00 Postage Bulk Mail Rec 6220110 General 2,000.00
2669  8/22/18 Wesco Graphics Inc. 7.931.27 Fall/Winter Review Rec 5210122 General 7,931.27
2670  8/24/18 Co of Marin DPW 500.00 2008 Mower Park 5220210 General 500.00
2671  8/24/18 PG&E 1,429.55 Streetlights Aug Rec 5210825 General 1,429.55
2672  8/24/18 Herc Rentals 1,892.24 FEMA Queenstone Rec 5220310 General 1,892.24
2673  8/28/18 Bruton, Robyn 142.06 Preschool Rec 5220819 Preschool 121.12
Camp Supplies Rec 5220819 Summer 20.94

2674  B/28/18 Mattie, John 3,471.00 Buff and Coat CC Rec 5220310 Building 3,471.00
2675  B/28/18 Ca Great America 4,422.00 Field Trip Rec 5220819 Summer 4,422.00
2676  8/28/18 Marin Pro Firefighters 805.60 Union Dues Aug Fire 5211330 General 805.60
2677  B/28/18 Mario Zemann 134.40 Ballroom Dance classes Rec 65210146 Adult 134.40



TOTAL

NO. DATE VENDOR CLAIM PURPOSE Class GL Account Job AMOUNT
2678  8/28/18 Dairy Delivery 437.30 Vending Rec 5220826 Pool 437.30
2679  8/29/18 Marinwood CSD 11,634.90 Retirement 8/31/18 Fire 5210510 General 8,609.72

Rec 5210510 General 1,627.62

Park 5210510 General 1,297.56

2680  8/29/18 Marinwood CSD 152,808.31 Fire Reg Salary Fire 5110110 General 29,262.08
Fire Temp Hire Fire 5110210 General 2,261.98

Fire Overtime Fire 5120110 General 5,207.72

FLSA Fire 5110319 General 868.80

Shift Diff. Fire 5110310 General 461.76

Admin Asst Fire 5110110 Admin 807.68

Admin Mngr Fire 5110110 Admin 1,940.00

Admin Asst Rec 5110110 Admin 807.68

Admin Asst Park 5110110 Admin 403.84

Admin Mngr Rec 5110110 Admin 970.00

Admin Mngr Park 5110110 Admin 970.00

Rec Director Rec 5110110 General 2,221.52

Rec Director Park 5110110 General 952.08

Rec Salary Rec 5110110 General 6,904.00

Park Salary Park 5§110110 General 6,389.60

Bldg Attendant Rec 5110210 Building 572.00

Pool Staff Rec 5110210 Pool 18,606.62

Aquatics/Lessons Rec 5110210 Aquatics 7,199.61

Summer Prog Rec 5110210 Summer 59,119.38

Preschool Rec 5110210 Preschool 576.00

Youth Prog Rec 5110210 Youth 44.00

Payroll billing Fire 5210230 General 129.48

Payroll billing Rec 5210230 General 356.19

Payroll billing Park 5210230 General 20.13

SS Fire 5140140 General 2,889.61

S8 Rec 5140140 General 7.810.24

S8 Park 5140140 General 484.30

Unemployment Rec 5140145 General 1,578.41

Benefits witholding Fire 2120066 General -5,088.52

Benefits witholding Rec 2120066 General -1,040.15

Benefits witholding Park 2120066 General -877.73

2681  8/29/18 DKG Dave Garoutte 300.00 MIP Stage crew Rec 5220819 Community 300.00
2682  8/30/18 Costello, Christine 150.00 Zumba Classes Rec 5210146 Adult 150.00
2683  8/30/18 Ca Assoc of Pro Fire 220.50 Long Term Dis Sept Fire 5130120 General 220.50
2684  8/30/18 Lori Margulies 121.80 Yoga Classes Rec 5210146 Adult 121.80
2685  8/30/18 McBride, Ann 376.60 Irish Dance Rec 5210146 Youth 376.60
2686  8/30/18 Mehciz, Gerald 988.80 Tennis Prog Rec 5210146 Tennis 988.80
2687  8/30/18 Zappetini 800.00 Fire Gate Queenstone Fire 5220310 General 800.00
2688  8/30/18 Kaiser 620.00 Physician Svcs Fire 5130120 General 520.00
2689  8/30/18 Comcast 127.06 Cable FH Fire 5210725 General 127.06
2690  8/30/18 West-Mark 387.45 Vehicle Maint Fire 520910 General 387.45
2691 8/30/18 Failsafe Testing 256.50 Ladder Testing Fire 5220210 General 256.50
TOTAL: B802,085.42 802,085.42_

Total by Department:

Streetlights 1,693.83

Fire Department 226,202.72

Recreation Department 514,842.59

Park Department 59,346.28



Marinwood Community Services District
OPEB Plan

Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017
For Purposes of Actuarial Funding
And GASB 75 ADC

July 27, 2018




NICOLAY |
Nicolay Consulting Group SIS SO

July 27, 2018 OPEB CONSULTANTS AND ACTUARIES
530 BUSH STREET, SUITE 500
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94108-3633
TEL: 415-512-5300
FAX: 415-512-5314
Mr. Eric Dreikosen

District Manager

Marinwood Community Services District
775 Miller Creek Road

San Rafael, California 94903

Re: Marinwood Community Services District June 30, 2017 Actuarial Report for Funding
Dear Mr. Dreikosen,

Marinwood Community Services District (“The District”) has retained Nicolay Consulting Group to
complete this valuation of the District's postemployment medical program (the “Plan”) as of June
30, 2017 measurement date compliant under Actuarial Standards of Practice for funding and
consistent with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 75 for actuarial
methods.

The purpose of this valuation is to determine the value of the expected postretirement benefits for
current and future retirees and the Actuarial Accrued Liability (i.e., Total OPEB Liability under
GASB 75) and Actuarially Determined Contribution for the plan year ending June 30, 2018. The
amounts reported herein are not necessarily appropriate for use for a different fiscal year without
adjustment.

Based on the foregoing, the cost results and actuarial exhibits presented in this report were
determined on a consistent and objective basis in accordance with applicable Actuarial Standards
of Practice and generally accepted actuarial procedures. We believe they fully and fairly disclose
the actuarial position of the Plan based on the plan provisions, employee and plan cost data
submitted.

The actuarial calculations were completed under the supervision of Gary Cline, ASA, MAAA, FCA,
Enrolled Actuary. A member of the American Academy of Actuaries whom meets the Qualification
Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion herein. To the best
of our knowledge, the information supplied in the actuarial valuation is complete and accurate. In
our opinion, assumptions as approved by the plan sponsor are reasonably related to the experience
of and expectations for the Plan.

We would be pleased to answer any questions on the material contained in this report or to provide
explanation or further detail as may be appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,
NICOLAY CONSULTING GROUP

ay £

GaryE Cline, ASA, MAAA, FCA, EA
Vice President & Chief Operating Officer




Table of Contents

Section Page

l. Management Summary

A) Highlights. ... ..o e 1
B) Gap ANaIYSIS ......ocoiiii e 2
C) 10-Year Projection of Employer Benefit Payments......................ooooni. 3
D) FUNAING Progress .......couveiiiie e e e 4
[l.  Actuarial Funding Exhibits and GASB 75 ADC
A) Derivation of Significant Actuarial Assumptions Liability (Exhibit 1)............. 5
B) Sensitivity Analysis (Exhibit 2) .............coooiiiiiiii 6
C) Breakdown of Explicit and Implicit Liabilities (Exhibit 3) .......................... 7
D) Schedule of Actuarially Determined Contributions (Exhibit4) .................. 8
E) Schedule of Contributions (Exhibit 5) ...............cooceiiiiiiiii, 9

F) Schedule of Actuarially Determined Contributions (Exhibit6) ..................10

G) Schedule of Contributions (Exhibit 7) .............cccccoiiiiiiiiii e, 11
[ll. Data

A) Summary of Demographic Information ......................coooviviiiiiinnn, 12

B) Distribution of Participants by Age and Service................c..oovveee ... 13
IV.  Plan Provision Summary

A) Plan DesCription ...........ouuriinii 14
\) Actuarial Assumptions, Methods, and Considerations

A) Actuarial ASSUMPLIONS ... ..ottt e e 15

B) Actuarial Methods ..., 20

C) Actuarial Considerations ..................cccivieiiiiiiii e 21
VI. Glossary

A) KeY TOIMS oo e e e 23

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017

NICOUAY

COMNSULTING



Section | Management Summary

A) Highlights

Summary of Key Valuation Results

Fnded tu for Plan year beginnin July 1 :
Present Value of Future Benefits:

Active $6,407,030
Retiree 2,858,740
Total $9,265,770
Actuarial Accrued Liability
Active $3,602,328
Retiree 2,858,740
Total $6,461,068
Market Value of Assets 0
Funded Status $6,461,068
Funded Status as a percentage of the AAL 0%
N/A
Actuarially Determined Contribution for PY beginning July 1:
Actuarially determined contributions (Exhibit 4) $531,502
Estimated Trust Contribution $60,000
Estimated Annual Retiree Premium 142,796
Active Implicit Subsidy __47.562
Total Contribution $250,358
Demographic data for Plan year beginning July 1 @)
Number of active members 19
Number of retired members and beneficiaries 14
Total 33
Key assumptions as of July 1:
Discount rate 3.58%

Initial Trend Rate

Pre-65 7.75%
Post-65 5.20%
Ultimate Rate 4.25%
Year Ultimate Rate is Reached 2033

it Includes payments fo trust and amounts paid directly by the plan sponsor
2 Census data as of June 30, 2017 is used in the measurement of the TOL as of June 30, 2017. See Section III for
additional details on the demographic data.

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 1

NICOLAY

CONSULTING




Section | Management Summary

B) Gap Analysis

The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) has decreased ($1,957,945) from $8,419,013 as of June 30,
2016 to $6,461,068 as of June 30, 2017. A breakdown of the sources of this change in liability is
shown below (thousands; amounts may not add due to rounding):

Expected Benefits Earned, Benefit Payments and Interest $421 5%
Actual Demographic and Other Experience __ 86 1%
Total Liability Experience $507 6%
Actual 2017 and 2018 Premiums ($663) (8%)
Revised Health Care Cost Trend (450) (5%)
Revised Mortality Rates (569) (7%)
Change Discount Rate to 3.58% 783 (9%)
Total Changes in Assumptions ($2,465) (29%)
Total Changes in Benefit Terms $0 0%
Liability Experience $507 6%
Changes in Assumptions (2,465) (29%)
Amendments 0 0%

Total ($1,958) (23%)

Changes in TOL

$600
$400 e
|
5200 |
so L_J ;.._4 i e Ir_ 24 }
& ¥ 5 | i | &
(5200) & & @f ' ,\Jb O{,if' Q\J’ |
& & | Bl Pl
(5400) Q | U] | |
| |
{$600) l ] = '
($800) —
($1.000)
Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 2

EIN 1O DAY
[CONSULTING



Section | Management Summary

C) 10-Year Projection of Employer Benefit Payments

In this table we show the projected pay-as-you-go costs (employer's share of premiums), the
implicit subsidy, and total expected benefit payments. The implicit subsidy reflects the shortfall
of premiums versus the true cost of coverage. The shortfall exists because claims for active
employees are combined with claims of retirees (who generally are older and cost more) to
develop a single flat premium paid by both groups.

Fiscal Year Implicit

Beginning 7/1 Premiums Subsidy
2017 $142,796 $47,562 $190,358
2018 $145,046 $37,348 $182,394
2019 $155,303 $34,331 $189,634
2020 $172,087 $41,671 $213,758
2021 $177,521 $36,300 $213,821
2022 $195,207 $47,164 $242,371
2023 $203,066 $40,625 $243,691
2024 $215,019 $51,549 $266,568
2025 $229,724 $55,532 $285,256
2026 $248,812 $69,158 $317,970

10-Year Projection of Employer Benefit Payments
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000 o
$150,000 | g g |
$100,000

$0 .
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Premiums @ Implicit Subsidy Total Benefit Payouts

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 3 NOCALAS 1

CONSULTING



Section | Management Summary

D) Funding Progress

Below is an illustration of the funded status of the Plan for the past 9 years, and a projection of
the next year looking forward:

Funded Status

(9-year historical, 1-year projection)

8,000,000 60.0%

7,000,000
50.0%

6,000,000

40.0%
5,000,000
4,000,000 30.0%
3,000,000

20.0%
2,000,000

10.0%
1,000,000

0 0.0%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

WA Total OPEB Liability W Plan Fiduciary Net Position e % Funded

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan

Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 4 NS 0



Section Il Actuarial Funding Exhibits and GASB 75 ADC

A) Derivation of Significant Actuarial Assumptions (Exhibit 1)

Long-term Expected Rate of Return — As of June 30, 2017, the long-term expected rates of return
for each major investment class in the Plan’s portfolio are as follows:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Investment Class Allocation Rate of Return!
Equity 43.00% 5.43%
Fixed Income 49.00% 1.63%
REITs 8.00% 5.06%

1JPMorgan arithmetic Long Term Capital Market assumptions and expected inflation of 2.26%.

The above table shows the target asset allocation in the CERBT Strategy 2 investment policy.

Discount Rate — The discount rate is based on a blend of (a) the long-term expected rate of
return on assets for benefits covered by plan assets and a yield or index for 20-year, tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or better for benefits not
covered by plan assets.

Above are the arithmetic long-term expected real rates of return by asset class for the next 10
years as provided in a report by JP Morgan. For years thereafter, returns were based on
historical average index real returns over the last 30 years assuming a similar equity/fixed
investment mix and a 2.26% inflation rate. Investment expenses were assumed to be 10 basis
points per year. These returns were matched with cash flows for benefits covered by plan
assets and the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation index was matched with cash flows not
covered by plan assets to measure the reasonableness of the choice in discount rate.

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017

Discount Rate 2.85% 3.58%
Expected Long-Term Return on Assets n/a 6.73%
Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index 2.85% 3.58%

Alternative Discount Rates — The discount rate is a function of the 20-year municipal bond
rate (for unfunded benefit payments) and Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Assets (for
prefunded benefit payments). To the extent that there are insufficient assets and/or future trust
contributions to cover future benefit payments, then the discount rate would primarily be based
on the 20-year municipal bond rate.

In this report, we model the Actuarial Determined Contribution under two funding policies.

1. No additional ad hoc trust contributions: 3.58% discount rate (see pages 8-9)
2. $60,000 annual ad hoc trust contributions: 6.73% discount rate (see pages 10-11)

The District’s actual funding policy is to make ad hoc trust contributions and to continue to pay
benefits outside of the trust. Under this policy, the discount rate may be based on what actual
contributions were made over a trailing 5-year period.

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 5

NITCOLAY

CONSULTING




Section ll Actuarial Funding Exhibits and GASB 75 ADC

B) Sensitivity Analysis (Exhibit 2)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to changes in the discount rate — The following presents
The District Net OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1%
point lower (2.58%) or 1% point higher (4.58%) than the current rate:

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to changes in the Trend rate — The following presents
The District Net OPEB Liability if it were calculated using a trend table that is 1% point lower or
1% point higher than the current rate:

Actuarial Accrued Liability as of June 30, 2017 Valuation date: $6,461,068

Sensitivity Analysis:

$ Change %Change

Discount Rate

+1% $5,574,089 ($886,979) (14%)
Base $6,461,068 - -

-1% $7,568,330 $1,107,262 17%
Trend Rate
+1% $7,482,857 $1,021,789 16%

Base $6,461,068 - -
1%  $5669,744  ($791,324) (12%)

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 6

NTC GLAY

CONSULTING




Section Il Actuarial Funding Exhibits and GASB 75 ADC

C) Breakdown of Explicit and Implicit Liabilities (Exhibit 3)

Present Value of Future Benefits

Explicit

Implicit

Actives $5,124,657 $1,282,373 $6,407,030
Retirees 2,391,726 467.014 2,858,740
Total $7,516,383 $1,749,387 $9,265,770
Actuarial Accrued Liability

Actives $2,900,245 $702,083 $3,602,328
Retirees 2,391,726 467.014 2,858,740
Total $5,291,971 $1,169,097 $6,461,068
Normal Cost (boy) $166,830 $42.672 $209,502
Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan

Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 7

NS OL AN

CONSULTING




Section Il Actuarial Funding Exhibits and GASB 75 ADC

D) Schedule of Actuarially Determined Contributions (Exhibit 4)

This schedule assumes that the District’s funding policy is to pay benefit cost as they occur, and
a one-time contribution of $60,000 to the trust. Under this funding strategy the maximum
discount rate is 3.58%.

"Plan Year 2017 - 2018 2018- 2019 2019 - 2020
Projected! Projected

Actuarial Accrued Liability $6,461,068 $6,715,642 $6,998,285
Actuarial Value of Assets? 0 61,065 63,251
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $6,461,068 $6,654,577 $6,935,034
Amortization Period?® 21 20 19
Normal Cost (eoy) $217,003 $227,853 $239,246
Amortization of UAAL* 328,956 355,188 389,025
Actuarially Determined Contribution $545,959 $583,041 $628,271
Discount Rate 3.58% 3.58% 3.58%
Expected Return on Assets 3.58% 3.568% 3.58%
Normal Cost Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

' Projections assume that the District funds the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), the Fund earns
3.58% per year, the discount rate remains 3.58% and the Normal Cost component of the ADC increases
by 5.0% per year throughout the two-year period. We assumed mid-year benefit withdrawals from the Trust.

2 Asset Smoothing: GASB 75 calculates the unfunded liability using market value of assets. However, equity
risk can result in significant asset volatility, which translates to a volatile unfunded liability. To mitigate this
volatility, the District can adopt an asset smoothing method, which recognizes gain/loss for any one year
systematically over the smoothing period. Common smoothing periods are 3-5 years in length.

3 Amortization Method: GASB 75 amortizes asset gain/loss over 5 years, liability experience gain/loss and
assumption change gain/loss over a variable period of roughly 5-10 years, and immediately recognizes plan
amendment gain/loss and your initial unfunded. Under the GASB 45 methodology, the District was amortizing
all of these items over a closed 30 year period. The District should consider whether the old GASB 45
methodology is still appropriate as it may lead to a significant under or over funding when the amortization
periods for the ADC calculation are not the same as the amortizations for GASB 75.

4 Amortization of UAAL Method: Under GASB 45 methodology, excess assets are amortized in the same way
that UAAL is amortized, which may result in the presence of an ADC even when the plan would be expected
to be fully funded at the end of the year without a contribution.

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 8

N [Vl AY
COMSULEPING



Section Il Actuarial Funding Exhibits and GASB 75 ADC

E) Schedule of Contributions? (Exhibit 5)

This schedule assumes that the District's funding policy is to pay benefit cost as they occur, and
a one-time contribution of $60,000 to the trust. Under this funding strategy the maximum
discount rate is 3.58%.

Plan Year 2017 - 2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution'2 $531,502
Covered-employee payroll® N/A
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll® N/A
Contributions to the Trust $60,000
Pay-go Payments by Employer Unreimbursed by the Trust 142,796
Active Implicit Rate Subsidy Transferred to OPEB 47 562
Total OPEB Contributions'? $250,358

! ADC and Contributions are for the measurement period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

? Employers setting a discount rate based on the assumption that assets will be sufficient to cover all future
benefit payments under the plan are assumed to annually make contributions equal to the actuarially
determined contribution. Annual contributions made that are substantially less than the ADC would require
additional support for use of a discount rate equal to the long-term expected return on trust assets.

* Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on covered-employee payroll provided by the
employer. GASB 75 defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of employees that are provided
OPEBs through the OPEB plan. Accordingly, if OPEB covered-employee payroll shown above is different
than total earnings for covered-employees, the employer should display in the disclosure footnotes the
payroll based on total earnings for the covered group and recalculate the required payroll-related ratios.

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 9

NCOLAY

COMNSULTING



Section Il Actuarial Funding Exhibits and GASB 75 ADC

F) Alternate Schedule of Actuarially Determined Contributions (Exhibit 6)

This schedule assumes that the District’s funding policy is to pay benefit cost as they occur, and
an annual contribution of about $60,000 to the trust. Under this funding strategy the maximum
discount rate is 6.73%.

"Plan Year 12017 - 2018 2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020

Projected’ Projected’
Actuarial Accrued Liability $4,188,875 $4,377,157 $4,591,221
Actuarial Value of Assets? 0 61,986 128,144
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $4,188,875 $4,315,171 $4,463,077
Amortization Period? 21 20 19
Normal Cost (eoy) $100,106 $105,111 $110,367
Amortization of UAAL* 290,680 309,824 332,354
Actuarially Determined Contribution $390,786 $414,936 $442,721
Discount Rate 6.73% 6.73% 6.73%
Expected Return on Assets 6.73% 6.73% 6.73%
Normal Cost Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

' Projections assume that the District funds the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), the Fund earns
3.58% per year, the discount rate remains 3.58% and the Normal Cost component of the ADC increases
by 5.0% per year throughout the two-year period. We assumed mid-year benefit withdrawals from the Trust.

2 Asset Smoothing: GASB 75 calculates the unfunded liability using market value of assets. However, equity
risk can result in significant asset volatility, which translates to a volatile unfunded liability. To mitigate this
volatility, the District can adopt an asset smoothing method, which recognizes gainfloss for any one year
systematically over the smoothing period. Common smoothing periods are 3-5 years in length.

3 Amortization Method: GASB 75 amortizes asset gain/loss over 5 years, liability experience gain/loss and
assumption change gain/loss over a variable period of roughly 5-10 years, and immediately recognizes plan
amendment gain/loss and your initial unfunded. Under the GASB 45 methodology, the District was amortizing
all of these items over a closed 30 year period. The District should consider whether the old GASB 45
methodology is still appropriate as it may lead to a significant under or over funding when the amortization
periods for the ADC calculation are not the same as the amortizations for GASB 75.

4 Amortization of UAAL Method: Under GASB 45 methodology, excess assets are amortized in the same way
that UAAL is amortized, which may result in the presence of an ADC even when the plan would be expected
to be fully funded at the end of the year without a contribution.

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan

Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 10 N

COMNSULVING




Section Il Actuarial Funding Exhibits and GASB 75 ADC

G) Alternate Schedule of Contributions' (Exhibit 7)

This schedule assumes that the District’s funding policy is to pay benefit cost as they occur, and
an annual contribution of about $60,000 to the trust. Under this funding strategy the maximum
discount rate is 6.73%.

Plan Year 2017 - 2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution'2 $390,786
Covered-employee payroll® N/A
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroli® N/A
Contributions to the Trust $60,000
Pay-go Payments by Employer Unreimbursed by the Trust 140,673
Active Implicit Rate Subsidy Transferred to OPEB 46,855
Total OPEB Contributions'? $247,528

! ADC and Contributions are for the measurement period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

? Employers setting a discount rate based on the assumption that assets will be sufficient to cover all future
benefit payments under the plan are assumed to annually make contributions equal to the actuarially
determined contribution. Annual contributions made that are substantially less than the ADC would require
additional support for use of a discount rate equal to the long-term expected return on trust assets.

* Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on covered-employee payroll provided by the
employer. GASB 75 defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of employees that are provided
OPEBSs through the OPEB plan. Accordingly, if OPEB covered-employee payroll shown above is different
than total earnings for covered-employees, the employer should display in the disclosure footnotes the
payroll based on total earnings for the covered group and recalculate the required payroll-related ratios.

Marinwood Community Services District OPEB Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Page 11

__f\;{l(_ LAY
COMSULTING






